FCerrterV1-7-38 ille Survey District Ca. 1870-1930
Urbana vicinity
Private

Centerville's survey district is an approximately 5-acre area along the
south side of Fingerboard Road extending roughly between Spencer Lane and
Thampson Drive. The 9 contributing buildings are mostly two-story frame and
log dwellings with modern artificial siding and corrugated metal or composition
roofs. Most have three bays and one-story porches, with 2-story or 1-1/2 story
rear wings and shed additions. Most houses have been considerably altered with
additions to the rear and side elevations or the enclosure of one-story
porches. The only non-residential building in the district is a frame tavern
of the 1930's, Brown's Tavern, a functional structure which was also expanded
in random additions. The district is significant as a fair example of a
post—-Civil War African-American commnity established by former slaves. It
shares the characteristics of simple frame houses with little or no decoration,
closely built siting, and locations within walking distance of working farms,
mills, and other employment centers with other similar settlements such as
Della, Pleasant View, and Hopeland, all villages established about the same

time by blacks.
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Centerville Survey District
Urbana

Frederick County

Historic Context:

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery
Counties, and Baltimore City)

chronological /Development Period:
Agricultural-Industrial Transition, A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial/Urban Dominance, A.D. 1870-1930

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes
Architecture, lLandscape Architecture and Community Planning

Resource Types:
Category: District
Historic Enviromment: Rural
Historic Function and Use:
Domestic/single dwelling/residence
Commerce/Trade/department store/store

Known Design Source: None




M6 Survey No. F-7-38

MARYLAND INVENTORY OF

Maryland Historical Trust  "HISTORIC PROPERTIES Magi No.
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE _yes xno

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic  Centerville Survey District

and/or common

2. Location

street & number  9527-9545 Fingerboard Road; 9708 Thompson Drive — not for publication

city, town Urbana — X vicinity of congressional district 6th

state Maryland county Frederick

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

—X district —_ public X occupied —— agriculture —___ museum

___ building(s) _*_ private _X unoccupied ____ commercial ___ park

—__ structure ___ both ___ work in progress __ educational _X_private residence

—___site Public Acquisition Accessible ____entertainment —_religious

-— __ object ____in process _X yes: restricted ____government ____ scientific

— being considered —_ yes: unrestricted industrial ____ transportation
_x not applicable _ no — military ___ other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name See Section 7
street & number telephone no.:
city, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber
street & number lOO W. Patrick Street folio
city, town Frederick state MD 21701

6. Representation in Existing uistorical surveys

title

date — federal ___ state ___county ___ local

4epository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. F-7-38

Condition Check one Check one

—— excellent _X_deteriorated ____ unaltered _%X_original site

_* good ___ruins X _ altered ___moved date of move
- fair —__ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE COUNT: 9

The Centerville Survey District encompasses approximately 5 acres and 11
buildings located on the southeast side of Fingerboard Road (Md. 80) about 1~1/2
miles northeast of Urbana, Frederick County, Maryland. The district is residential
in use amd has 9 contributing buildings, two of which are unoccupied, and 2 non-
contributing buildings. The contrilbuting residences are mostly frame and log
vernacular structures kuilt during the period about 1870 to 1930 by freed
African-American slaves. All of the houses now have modern artificial exterior
siding and most have additions and extensions made during the last quarter of the
19th and the first half of the 20th century. One of the unoccupied buildings is a
tavern, built in the 1930's and expanded with functional additions over several
years up to about 1960. The tavern and the second unoccupied building, a dwelling,
are in fair condition and the other dwellings are in good to fair condition. Dates
of the bhuildings are based on land records, historical maps, and architectural
details.

The district's huildings are generally closely built, with non-contributing
modern residences more widely spaced adjoining the south end of the district and
extending along two lanes running southeasterly from Fingerboard Road, Spencer Lane
and Thompson Drive. One of the contributing dwellings and the two non-
contributing buildings are located on the northeast side of Thompson Lane, these
being the only structures in the swurvey district which do not face Fingerboard
Road. The typical house is a two-story frame or log building with two rooms
originally on the ground floor, three bays with a center entrance, and 2/2 or 6/6
windows. Most have a two-story rear wing or one-story shed addition on the rear
housing the Kkitchen. The houses and the rear projections are simple in design and
detail, in a compact, economical scale, although the modern alterations have
obscured the original cutlines on most of the houses to a moderate extent. Chimneys
were usually located on the interior gable ends or in the center of the house. Many
now have exterior concrete block chimneys or no visible exterior chimney locations.
Roofs are mostly composition, corrugated metal or standing seam metal. Siding,
probably covering or replacing german siding on most houses, is asbestos shingle,
pressboard, aluminum, or vinyl. Following are brief descriptions of the contributing
structures:

9545 Fingerboard Road: The two-story house has asbestos shingle siding with three
bays on the first story and two on the second story. An originally open one-story
porch was enclosed in the 20th century. The roof is standing seam metal and has an
off-center chimney. The windows are 2/2. A 1-1/2 story rear wing extends from the
south elevation. The house is one of several in the district built by the Thompson
family. Its general form strongly suggests that it may be log and therefore may
predate the earliest identified land record dated 1880. Owners: John and Ora
Thompson, 9545 Fingerboard Road, Ijamsville, MD 21754.

9547 Fingerboard Road: The house has two stories and is covered with pressboard
siding, with three bays on the first story and two on the second. An entry porct

(Continued on separate sheet)



8. Significance Survey No. F-7-38

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
___ prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric _X_community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion
- 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —__ conservation — law ____science
.1500-1599 ____ agriculture —__economics —__literature — sculpture
— 1600-1699 ___ architecture ___ education — military — social/
— 1700-1799 ___ art —__engineering — music humanitarian
X _1800-1899 ___ commerce - exploration/settiement __ philosophy — theater
X 1900- _____communications — industry ___ politics/government __ transportation
____invention —__ other (specify)
Specific dates Ca. 1870-1930 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _ A __ B XC _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state Xlocal

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Centerville Survey District is significant primarily as an example of a
post—Civil War African-American community established by former slaves and other
blacks. In common with Pleasant View, Della, Hopeland, and other similar
settlements which were established in the southern part of Frederick County during
the period about 1865-1900, Centerville is composed of simple frame and log
dwellings based on the vernacular dwellings common to most of Frederick County,
heavily influenced by German building techniques. The two-story houses with
perpendicular rear wings are mostly altered by modern siding and later additions
which obscure much of their 19th century origins. Centerville may be the only one
~f the late 19th century African-American villages to have a 20th century commercial

dlding, a 1930's tavern. Located between the towns of Urbana and Ijamsville,
Centerville's inhabitants walked to Jjobs in the area and established the Ebenezer
Methodist Episcopal Church at the intersection of Ijamsville and Fingerboard Roads
in about 1883. Although located about 1/4 mile from the survey district, the
vicinity of the church and the neighboring schoolhouse for black children
(demolished in the mid-20th century) were also considered part of the Centerville
commnity. The 1858 Bond map shows a Methodist Episcopal church near the location
of the survey district, with a blacksmith shop on the north side of Fingerboard
Road. No residences are shown. The 1873 Titus Atlas map, however, has a closely
ranked series of 5 or 6 dwellings marked with the names Thompson, Jones, Davis,
Brown, Fairfax, and others. Land records indicate that many of the extant buildings
were erected on the lands of Lloyd Thompson who died about 1906, leaving two sons
and at least one daughter, all of whom received lots which had been surveyed and
platted in 1905. This 1905 plat by R. A. Rager has not been located, having been in
Lloyd Thompson's possession at his death.



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. F-7-38

Erickson, Marie Anne. "Centerville", Frederick Magazine (July 1992), 14, 22.
Land Records of Frederick County
Titus, C.0O. Atlas of Frederick County, 1873.

10. Geographical Data

5 acres

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name __Urbana, Md. Quadrangle scale _1:24000

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

Approximately 5 acres as shown on the attached quad map section

List all states and counties for properties overiapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nametitie Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept. date October 1993
street & number 12 E. Church Street telephone ©696-2958
city or town Frederick state MD 21701

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical t MARY’LANQ
Shaw House -
21 State 100 ,i_

is, Maryland 21401
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Centerville Survey District SURVEY No. F-7-38
Frederick County

7.1 Description (Continued)

shelters the doorway. ‘The roof is covered with corrugated metal and a slight
irregularity in the ridge may indicate the 1location of an original center
chimney. The 1/1 windows are replacements, as are the shutters. A two-story
rear extension projects on the southeast corner. The house was also a Thampson
family residence, and was probably built about 1870, although the title record
is only traceable to about 1880, as was that of 9545. Owner: Wilhelmina B.
Ransford, 9547 Fingerboard Road, Ijamsville, MD 21754.

Unoccupied house: The only unoccupied residence in the survey district, this
house has no visible house number. It is built at a slight angle to the plane
of the other houses facing Fingerboard Road and is very close to 9547 on its
north side. A driveway runs between the two houses to a modern residence to
the southeast which is not included in the district boundary. The unoccupied
house is a two-story frame or log building with hexagonal asphalt tile siding.
The roof is covered with corrugated metal and an interior chimney is located at
the northeast gable end. The three-bay north elevation has a center entrance
with a glazed panel door. A one-story porch extends onto both the north and
west elevations. The rear wing has 1-1/2 stories. The house is generally
deteriorated condition. It was probably built about 1870. The owner could not
be verified for this record.

9539 Fingerboard Road: This house is a much-altered 1-1/2 story building in
which the structural material, log or frame, could not be determined from
exterior observation. It has asbestos shingle siding and a composition roof
with two dormers in the north side. The chimney is located on the interior
southwest end. The window and door openings on the three-bay facade have been
altered, with the entrance off-center under a small entry porch. The visible
concrete block foundation may replace or face an original stone foundation.
The rear wing is one story. The house may have been built about 1892 by Thomas
Chase, who bought one acre of land from Ann Horman for $50 in that year, but in
a September 1916 lawsuit, the lot was described as containing a "1-1/2 story
stone dwelling, a good stable, meat house, and hen house." Since the lot was
split in 1925, both 9539 and 9537 may date from that period, replacing the
demolished stone house. Owners: Chris D. Sprenkle and Dodie L. Waters, 9539
Fingerboard Road, Ijamsville, MD 221754.

9537 Fingerboard Road: The house is also considerably altered in its exterior
appearance. It is a 1-1/2 story house with pressboard siding and a shed dormer
in the corrugated metal roof. The three-

bay facade has an off-center doorway sheltered by a metal awning supported on
cast iron uprights. The windows are 2/2 on the north elevation, but are of
various styles on the other elevations. A one-story shed addition is located
on the south elevation. The house may date from about 1925, as described
above. Owners: Iana E. Sewell et al, 1002 Peach Orchard Lane, Brunswick, MD
21716.

9535 Fingerboard Road: The house is a two-story frame or log building with
pressboard siding and a three-bay first story. A one-story porch with cast
iron colums shelters the center entrance. The second story has two bays. The
windows are 1/1 replacements and the louvred shutters are also modern




Centerville Survey District SURVEY No. F-7-38
Frederick County

7.2 Description (Continued)

replacements. An interior chimney and an exterior concrete block chimney are at
the gable ends. The roof is corrugated metal. The two-story rear wing extends
from the south elevation. A non-contributing garage is located behind the
house. This house was probably built about 1877 by Alfred Thompson, who bought
a total of 72 square perches for $80 in two deeds from Thomas Clagett in that
year. Owners: Floyd N. and Edna M. Lyles, 3819 Big Woods Road, Ijamsville, MD
21754.

9527 Fingerboard Road: This lot contains both a dwelling and the tavern, which
is aurrently not occupied. The dwelling is a two-

story frame or log house with artificial stone exterior. The three-bay north
elevation has a one-story porch with cast iron columns. The second story has
metal awnings at the windows, which are 2/2. The roof is standing seam metal
and an interior end chimmey is on the east gable end. A 1-1/2 story wing
extends from the rear elevation. A one-story addition is on the east
elevation. The tavern is a one-story rambling structure with no definable bay
patterns and various exterior siding, indicating the several additions made to
the original structure over many years. Much of the exterior has aluminum
siding and groups of three windows flank a projecting foyer entrance on the
north elevation. The composition roof has a deteriorated standing metal sign
reading Brown's Tavern, Sandwiches and Beer. The building was probably built
about 1933-1935 by Norris Brown, the purchaser of the property in 1930.
Present owners: Marvin Gibbs and Frnestine M. Brown, 9527 Fingerboard Road,
Tjamsville, MD 21754.

9708 Thompson Drive: The two-story log and frame dwelling has aluminum siding
and a corrugated metal roof. The southwest elevation has three bays on the
first story and two on the second, with a modern flat-roofed porch supported on
cast iron colums. The windows are 2/2 with metal awnings. An exterior
concrete block chimney is on the gable end. A 1-1/2 story rear wing extends
from the northeast corner and a one-story addition is on the south gable erd.
The date of the house is probably about 1870, although the land records
indicate only that the property was part of the Thompson family lands. In
1941, the house was described as having 6 rooms, with a small fruit orchard
nearby on the 2-3/4 acre 1lot. Owner: Mrs. Edith M. Thompson, 9708 Thompson
Drive, Ijamsville, MD 21754.
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